
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Tel No: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

 
Helen Gray 
247 4355 
 
 
 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 
MEETING TO BE HELD IN CIVIC HALL, LEEDS ON 

 
MONDAY, 16TH SEPTEMBER, 2013 AT 10.00 AM 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
Membership of this Licensing Sub Committee to be determined at the meeting of 

Licensing Committee to be held on Tuesday 10th September 2013 
 

 -  

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   PRELIMINARY PROCEDURES 
 

 

1     ELECTION OF THE CHAIR 
 

 

2   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
 
1) To highlight reports or appendices which: 
  
a) officers have identified as containing exempt 

information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
b) To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
c) If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
those parts of the agenda designated as 
containing exempt information on the grounds that 
it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information 
 
2) To note that under the Licensing Procedure 
rules, the press and the public will be excluded 
from that part of the hearing where Members will 
deliberate on each application  as it is in the public 
interest to allow the Members to have a full and 
frank debate on the matter before them. 
 

 

4   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify any applications as late items of 
business which have been admitted to the agenda 
for consideration 
 
 (the special circumstances shall be identified in 
the minutes) 
 
 

 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

5   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

   HEARINGS 
 

 

6   
 

City & 
Hunslet 

 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE FOR BLACK DIAMOND, 
68-72 NEW BRIGGATE, LEEDS, LS1 6UN 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Licensing and 
Registration for the application for the Grant of a 
Premises Licence for Black Diamond, 68 – 72 New 
Briggate, Leeds, LS1 6UN. 
 
(Report attached) 
 

1 - 40 

7   
 

City & 
Hunslet 

10.4(1, 2, 
3) 

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A SEX 
ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE FOR BLACK 
DIAMOND CLUB, 68-72 NEW BRIGGATE, 
LEEDS LS1 6UN 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Licensing 
and Registration for an application for the Grant of 
a Sex Establishment Licence for Black Diamond 
Club, 68-72 New Briggate, Leeds LS1 6UN.  
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: Appendix C of the report is 
designated as exempt under the provisions of 
paragraph 10.4 (1, 2 and 3) of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules. 
 

41 - 
82 

 



1

Report of the Head of Licensing and Registration

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee

Date:  Monday 16th September 2013

Subject:  Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence for Black Diamond, 68-72 
  New Briggate, Leeds, LS1 6UN 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): City & Hunslet 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of Main Issues 

This is an application for the grant of a new premises licence for `Black Diamond’, 68 - 72 
New Briggate, Leeds LS1 6NU. 

Responsible authorities and Ward Members have been notified of this application.

The application has attracted representations from other persons.

The premises are located within an area covered by a Cumulative Impact Policy. 

1.0 Purpose of this Report

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 ("the Act") for a premises licence in respect of the above mentioned 
premises. 

1.2 Members are required to consider this application due to the receipt of 
representations. 

2.0 History of Premises

2.1 The premises are currently licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
provision of regulated entertainment, sale of alcohol and late night refreshment, as 
per the activities and hours as set out at 3.3 below. 

Report Author:  Miss Philomena Carville 

 0113 247 4095

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



2

3.0 The Application

3.1 The applicant is Illuminati Ventures Limited. 

3.2 The application form may be found at Appendix A to this report. 

3.3  In summary the application is to cover the basement, ground, first and second 
floors of the building for: 

• Exhibition of Films 

• Live Music 

• Recorded Music 

• Performance of Dance 

• Anything of a similar description 

• Sale of Alcohol 
 Sunday to Thursday  12:00 – 05:00 
 Friday & Saturday      12:00 – 07:00 

• Late Night Refreshment 
 Sunday to Thursday  23:00 – 05:00 
 Friday & Saturday     23:00 – 07:00 

3.4 Non Standard Timings 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Year’s Day. 

At the start of British Summertime, the terminal hour for all licensable activities 
shall be extended by one hour. 

3.5 Members will note from the application form attached that the premises name as 
 applied for was ‘Tantric Blue’, however on reflection the operator has withdrawn this 
 request and proposes to operate under the original name of Black Diamond.

4.0 Other Matters Relevant to the Application

4.1 Alongside the existing  premises licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003, the 
premises has the benefit of a sexual entertainment licence issued under the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 amended by the Policing and  

 Crime Act 2009. This licence allows the premises to provide entertainment of a 
sexual nature, namely lap dancing, on the 1st and 2nd floors of the premises 
between the hours of 10.00pm and 4.00am Sunday to Thursday and between 
10.00pm and 5.00am Friday and Saturday. 

4.2 An application has been made under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 for a sexual entertainment licence for all four floors of the 
premises.  That application is subject to separate consideration. 

4.3 Members should note that the application under the Licensing Act 2003 was 
received on 9th January 2013 and there have been previous hearings in 
connection with this application.  At that time Members heard how the premises 
were absent of the relevant planning consent, which is primarily a matter for the 
sexual entertainment venue licence application.  However, with the consent of the 
applicant, the hearing has been adjourned on various occasions pending the 

Page 2



3

outcome of the planning application. 

4.4 It is confirmed that the premises now possess the relevant planning consent. 

4.5 At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and 
diversity. Any decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee will be in 
accordance with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act 
2003. 

5.0 Steps to Promote the Licensing Objectives

5.1 The applicant proposed to take specific steps to promote the licensing objective 
identified in section “M” of the application form. 

5.2 Proposed Designated Premises Supervisor

5.3 Spencer Tregidgo intends to be the Designated Premises Supervisor. 

6.0 Location

6.1 A map which identifies the location of these premises is attached at Appendix B. 

7.0 Cumulative Impact Policy

7.1 The premises are located within the Cumulative Impact City Centre area. 

7.2 Cumulative impact means the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives here there are a significant number of licensed premises concentrated 
in one area. 

7.3 An applicant wishing to obtain a new licence for premises falling within any of the 
cumulative impact areas must identify through the risk assessment process and/or 
operating schedule the steps that they intends to take so that the council and 
responsible authorities can be satisfied with that granting of a new licence will not 
add to the impact already being experienced. 

7.4 Details of the Cumulative Impact Policy specific to City Centre and an outline of 
the evidence behind the reason for setting this Policy is attached at Appendix C. 

8.0 Representations

8.1 Under the Act representations can be received from responsible authorities or 
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of another 
person, must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

8.2 Representations from Responsible Authorities

8.2.1 Any representations submitted may be agreed prior to a hearing. In this instance 
agreements have been reached with West Yorkshire Police and Leeds City 
Council Health and Safety. The operating schedule has been amended to include 
the measures agreed. 

8.2.2 A copy of the agreed West Yorkshire Police measures may be found at  
 Appendix D. 

Page 3



4

8.2.3 A copy of the agreed Leeds City Council Health and Safety measures may be 
found at Appendix E. 

8.3 Other Representations

8.3.1 The application has attracted representations from other persons. 

8.3.2 The main points of concern raised are that the premises may cause noise 
disturbance for the nearby residents and that the granting of this licence would 
add to the cumulative impact within the area. 

8.3.3 The licensing section is in receipt of two individual letters, one of which is from a 
local ward councilor. 

8.3.4 Copies of the representations will be available at the hearing for Members 
consideration. 

9.0 Options Available to Members

9.1 The Licensing sub-committee must take such of the following steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

• Grant the application as requested. 

• Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering in 
any way the proposed operating schedule. 

• Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates. 

• Refuse to specify the said person as the designated premises supervisor. 

• Reject the whole or part of the application. 

 Adjourn the application to a specified date subject to certain terms 

9.2 Members of the Licensing sub-committee are asked to note that they may not 
modify the conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely because 
it considers it desirable to do so. It must actually be appropriate in order to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

10.0 Background Papers

• Guidance issued under s182 Licensing Act 2003 

• Leeds City Council Licensing Policy 

• Representations received from other persons 

Page 4



Appendix A

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Leeds City Council

Entertainment Licensing

Date:

Scale:

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey’s Digital Data with the 

Permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 

Majesty’s Stationary Office

© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead 

to prosecution or civil proceedings

Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 100019567

© Crown Copyright all rights reserved

PREM/03281/001

Tantric Blue, 68/72 New Briggate, Leeds, LS1 6NU

21 February 2013

Appendix B

1:1250

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Cumulative Impact Policy

Area 1 - City Centre

Cumulative Impact Policy 

Area 1 as defined on the map relates to the city centre.  

Fig 1 

It is the council’s policy, on receipt of relevant representations, to refuse new and variation 

applications in Area 1 for alcohol led premises such as bars, pubs and nightclubs and for 
premises seeking late night refreshment such as takeaways and late opening restaurants, unless 

the applicant can demonstrate that their application would not impact on the cumulative effect of 

such licensed premises in the area. 

Rationale 

In the five years since the cumulative impact policy for the city centre was introduced, the City 
Centre has changed.  Recent crime statistics show three main hot spots for crime and disorder: 

1. Call Lane, Boar Lane and the area behind the Corn Exchange 

2. Woodhouse Lane, Merrion Way and Wade Lane 

3. The east end of The Headrow and New Briggate 

Other areas of concern include the Eastgate area and Briggate. 

The council has noticed an increase in applications for premises licences in the Park Square area.  
It is feasible that this is due to displacement from the East Parade/Greek Street/Park Row part of 

the cumulative impact policy. 

On reviewing these facts and the previous cumulative impact policy, the council has amended the 

geographical area of the cumulative impact policy to incorporate the crime hotspots and the Park 
Square area.

In addition there is rising concern about premises which have not been included within the scope 

of the previous policy, such as restaurants serving hot food and drink after 11pm.  These 
premises have also contributed to crime, disorder and public nuisance in the city centre. 

The previous policy referenced high volume vertical drinking establishments.  This reference has 

been removed as it is recognised that all alcohol led licensed premises can contribute to crime 

and disorder in the area, not just those that are classified as “high volume vertical drinking” 
establishments. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 

Appendix CAppendix C

Page 29



Evidence

Fig 2 

Nuisance reports in Area 1 (2005 – 2010) 

Fig 2 shows the number and location of nuisance reports received by Leeds City Council, relevant 
to licensed premises in Area 1 since 2005. 

Police analysis has shown the following key findings relating to serious crime in Area 1: 

94% of serious violent offences have been committed in the night-time economy (NTE) 
period.

63% of offences committed in the NTE are affected by alcohol 
20% of offences committed in the NTE are committed within licensed premises 

Between 2008 and 2009 incidents have increased by 26 equating to a 32% rise. 

Fig 3 

Serious Violent Crime hot-spots 

Fig 3 shows density of serious violent crime offences in Area 1.  The coloured dots are 

licensed premises however, have not been identified individually by name. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 
Page 30



Fig 4 

Assault hot-spots 

Fig 4 shows density of assault offences in Area 1. 

Fig 5

Anti-Social Behaviour hot-spots 

Fig 5 shows density of anti-social behaviour offences in Area 1. 

The current CIP for Area 1 (Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 2008-2010) does 
not cover large parts of the city centre which currently suffer from nuisance and crime 

attributable to licensed premises.

Extracted from the Final Consultation Report published in December 2010 which presented the findings of 

the review of the cumulative impact policies and the subsequent public consultation on the amended 

Statement of Licensing Policy which took place in 2010.  The full report is available from Entertainment 

Licensing. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 
Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report of the Head of Licensing and Registration 

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee 

Date:  Monday 16th September 2013     

Subject:   Sexual Entertainment Venue 

  Black Diamond Club, 68- 72 New Briggate, Leeds LS1 6UN 

  Application for the Grant of a Sex Establishment Licence 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   City and Hunslet   Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes    No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 10.4 (1, 2 & 3) 

Appendix number:  C 

Summary of Main Issues  

This is an application for the grant of a sex establishment licence for premises that 
presently has the benefit of a sex establishment licence for a smaller operation. 

1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under section 2 and schedule 3 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982  for the grant of a  sex 
establishment licence for premises known as `Black Diamond Club’, situated at 
68-72 New Briggate, Leeds LS1 6UN.

2.0 History of Premises 

2.1  The premises have operated under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 for 
the provision of alcohol and regulated entertainment for a number of years.  Office 
records suggest that the premises have been licensed since 2005.  Records prior 
to this date are not available. 

Report Author: Philomena Carville 

Tel:  0113 247 4095

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



2

2.2 At that time there was no separate licence required for the provision of sexual 
entertainment, and it is understood that lap dancing has been provided at this 
premises during that time. 

2.3 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 amended the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 Section 2 and Schedule 3 to introduce a new classification of 
sex establishment, namely sexual entertainment venues.  This brought lap 
dancing, pole dancing and other “relevant entertainment” into the same regime 
that has licensed sex shops and sex cinemas in the Leeds area since 1982. 

2.4 Leeds City Council adopted the provisions of Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 
2009 on 19th January 2011 with effect from 1st October 2011. 

2.5 In September 2011 Leeds City Council adopted its Statement of Licensing Policy 
for the Licensing of Sex Establishments.

2.6 From 1 October 2011 until 31 March 2012 operators of sexual entertainment 
venues were able to apply for a sex establishment licence for their business.   

2.7 In June 2012 these premises were successfully granted a sex establishment 
licence to provide sexual entertainment in the form of lap dancing. (This licence 
covered the 1st and 2nd floors of the building only). 

2.8 A copy of the current licence may be found at Appendix A. 

2.9 The Statement of Licensing Policy for the Licensing of Sex Establishments has 
subsequently been reviewed and a new Policy was adopted by Executive Board in 
July 2013 with effect from 1st September 2013. 

3.0 The Application 

3.1 This is an application for a new sex establishment licence for all four floors of the 
premises, to incorporate the basement, ground, first and second floors of these 
premises.  Presently the premises are licensed to operate as a sexual 
entertainment venue on the first and second floors only. 

3.2 Members will note from the application form attached that the premises name as 
 applied for was ‘Tantric Blue’, however on reflection the operator has withdrawn 
 this request and proposes to operate under the original name of Black Diamond. 

3.3 A partial copy of the application may be found at appendix B to this report.  It 
should be noted that certain information submitted within the application is 
potentially exempt information under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 
(1,2 and 3) as it includes information which relates to individuals, is likely to reveal
the identity of an individual and and/or relates to the business affairs of any 
particular person. As a consequence Members are provided with a full copy of the 
application contained within a separate appendix C and will be asked to consider 
exclusion of the press and public from the hearing if those matters are to be 
discussed. 

Page 42



3

3.4 The West Yorkshire Police have been notified of this application. 

3.5 A public notice advertising the application has been displayed at the premises for 
a period of 21 days and published in the local press. 

3.6 Objections have been received to this application from elected members, and 
from members of the public. 

3.7 In summary the objections relate to location, demand, and the protection of 
children. 

3.8 If Members are minded to approve this application, the licence may l be granted 
for a period of 12 months. 

4.0 Other Matters Relevant to the Licence 

4.1 The existing licence (1st & 2nd Floors) was on the 5th August 2013 successfully 
transferred to Illuminati Ventures Limited. 

5.0 Planning Consent 

5.1 Planning permission to incorporate all four floors of the building was granted on 1st

August 2013 with conditions attached as set out below: 

 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 

 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved plans listed in the Plans Schedule. 

 The use hereby approved shall not commence until a scheme to control 
noise emitted from the premises has been approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and implemented as approved.  The scheme shall provide 
that the LAeq of entertainment noise does not exceed the representative 
background noise level LA90 (without entertainment noise), and the LAeq of 
entertainment noise shall be at least 3dB below the background noise level 
LA90 (without entertainment noise) in octaves between 63 and 125Hz when 
measured at the nearest noise sensitive premises.  The approved scheme 
shall thereafter be retained.

 The hours of use of the premises shall be restricted to 2100 hours to 0600 
hours.

 The hours of delivery to and from the premises, together with loading and 
unloading within the premises shall be restricted to 0800 hours to 2100 hours 
Monday to Saturday with no such operations taking place on Sundays and 
Bank Holidays. 

 There shall be no storage of refuse outside the approved refuse storage 
area.

 The existing flue on Merrion Place shall be removed prior to first use of the 
premises.

Page 43



4

 Details of any external lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation.  The works 
shall only be carried out in accordance with the details thereby agreed. 

This permission does not give consent to any advertisement intended to be 
displayed on the site for which separate express consent may be necessary under 
the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007. 

6.0 Other Matters Relevant to the Application 

6.1     If approved, the sex establishment licence may remain in force for a period of 12 
months or for a shorter period should the licensing authority think fit. 

7.0 Options Available to Members 

7.1 In relation to the grant of an application, the licensing sub-committee may take 
any of the following steps it considers necessary: 

 Grant the application as requested attaching standard conditions as set out in 
the Councils Statement of Licensing Policy for the Licensing of Sex 
Establishments. 

 Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering the 
standard conditions or altering in any way the proposed application. 

 Refuse the application on the following mandatory grounds; 

- if the applicant is under the age of 18, 

- if the applicant has a disqualification following the revocation of their 
licence 

- if the applicant is not-resident in an EEA state, 

- if the applicant is a company not incorporated in an EEA state, 

- if the applicant has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding 
the date when the application was made, been refused the grant or 
renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of 
which the applicant is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on 
appeal.

 Refuse the application on the following discretionary grounds: 

- That the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having 
been convicted of an offence or for any other reasons; 

- That if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the 
business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for the 
benefit of a person other than the applicant, who would be refused the 
grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made the application 
himself;

- That the number or sex establishments or of sex establishments of a 
particular kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is made is 
equal to or exceeds the number which the authority consider is 
appropriate for that locality; 

Page 44



5

- That the grant of renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having 
regard:

o To the character of the relevant locality; or 
o To the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put or 
o To the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, 

vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made 

8.0 Recommendation 

8.1 Members are asked to consider and determine the application in accordance with 
paragraph 7.1 above. 

9.0 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix A – Copy of Existing Sex Establishment Licence 
9.2 Appendix B – Copy of Application 
9.3 Appendix C – Exempt Information 

10.0 Background papers  

10.1 Leeds City Council Licensing of Sex Establishments – Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

10.2 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the 
Policing and Crime Act 2009. 

10.3 Objections 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Sex Establishment Licence 

Sexual Entertainment Venue 

Licence Number: 

Licence Issued on: 

Effective from: 

Licence Expires on:  

SX/SEV/00015/13/02

15th June 2012

5th August 2013

30th September 2013

Issued under Part 2, Sch 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Entertainment Licensing, Leeds City Council, Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR 

Licence issued under the authority of Leeds City Council: 

Mr Matthew Nelson 
Licensing Officer 

Entertainment Licensing 

Licensing and Registration 

Licence produced on 20/08/2013 

This licence authorises the following premises: 

Black Diamond Club, 68 New Briggate, Leeds, LS1 6NU 

To provide relevant entertainment as defined in Schedule 3, Section 2A of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 during the following hours: 

Sunday to Thursday 22:00 - 04:00 

Friday & Saturday 22:00 - 05:00 

This licence is issued to: 

Illuminati Ventures Limited, C/o Ricardo Monty, 61 London Road, Staines, TW18 4PA 

The activities authorised by this licence must be carried out in accordance with the conditions attached to 
it. 

Leeds City Council is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the 

information you have provided on your application for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also 

share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering public funds for these 

purposes.

Appen ix A

Page 47



Licence produced on 20/08/2013 at 12:15 - SX/SEV/00015/13/02  Page 0 of 4

These are the terms and conditions that are attached to the following Sexual Entertainment 
Venue licence. 

Licence number: SX/SEV/00015/13/02

Issued Date: 15th June 2012 

Expiry Date: 30th September 2013 

Premises: Black Diamond Club, 68 New Briggate, Leeds, LS1 
6NU

 1. Unless stated otherwise, the licence hereby granted will operate for one year from the 
date on the licence, after which it will cease to be in effect unless an application for 
renewal is submitted in the manner prescribed by the council. 

 2. The licence may be revoked by the council if at any time the holder is convicted of an 
offence of using the licensed premises, or other premises for which a similar licence has 
been granted, other than in accordance with the terms, conditions or restrictions of the 
licence or is convicted of any offence under any enactment defined in paragraph 1 of 
Schedule 4 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended. 

 3. The licensee will provide (subject to the satisfaction of both the police and the licensing 
authority), a code of practice for entertainers and code of conduct for customers, and 
these must be made available upon request to both the police and authorised officers. 

 4. All rules (code of practice for entertainers, code of conduct for customers, dispersal 
policies etc) to be prominently displayed on the premises. 

 5. Price lists will be clearly displayed at each table and at each entrance to the premises. 

 6. All rules and price lists as described in conditions 4 and 5 must be printed in a manner 
which is clear and easy to read during the normal operation of the premises. 

 7. Suitable and sufficient training is to be provided to all staff including the responsible 
person as described in condition 27.  The training of all staff is to be recorded and the 
training record must be made available upon request to both the police and authorised 
officers.

 8. The name of the premises must be approved by the council in writing.  Any change to the 
name of the premises must be approved by the council in writing. 

 9. The licence, or a clear copy, will be prominently displayed at all times so as to be readily 
and easily seen by all persons using the premises, the police, the fire authority and 
authorised officers of the council.  A copy of the conditions attached to the licence will be 

Sex Establishment Licence

Terms and conditions attached to a licence

Page 48



Licence produced on 20/08/2013 at 12:15 - SX/SEV/00015/13/02  Page 1 of 4

kept on the premises and be available for inspection by an authorised officer of the 
council, or the police or fire authority. 

10. The premises will only be open to the public during the following hours: 

 Friday & Saturday 22:00 - 05:00 
 Sunday to Thursday 22:00 - 04:00 

11. Entertainers will only perform on the stage area, or in booths/areas for VIPs as identified 
on the plan attached to the licence. 

12. Relevant entertainment will only be performed by the entertainer.  There must be no 
audience participation. 

13. There must be no physical contact between entertainers. 

14. Customers will not touch the breasts or genital area of entertainers.  Entertainers will not 
directly or indirectly touch the breasts or genital area of customers. 

15. Any performance will be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes.  There will not 
be any other form of sexual activity or stimulation which, for the avoidance of doubt, 
includes kissing. 

16. Sex toys must not be used and penetration of the genital area by any means must not 
take place. 

17. Customers will not be permitted to throw money at the entertainers. 

18. There will be a notice displayed inside each entrance or doorway to the premises, clearly 
visible on entering the premises, which states the following: 

Strictly No Admittance to Persons Under 18 Years of Age
  These premises operate a Challenge 25 policy. 
  Persons under the age of 25 will be required to show proof of age. 

19. The external appearance of the premises must be approved by the council in writing. 

20. Any change to the external appearance must be approved by the council.  The operator 
must advise of any change in writing including a drawing of the existing and proposed 
street elevation.  This must be approved by the council before work is undertaken. 

21. Access to the licensed area of the premises should be through a lobby area which is 
constructed in such a way that the inside of the licensed premises where relevant 
entertainment takes place is not visible to passing members of the public when the doors 
of the premises are opened. 

22. Signage will only be illuminated between 10pm and 6am, and movable signs placed 
outside the premises will be removed between 6am and 10pm. 

23. Any written, visual or auditory advertisement material, posters, signage or window display 
must not be of a sexually explicit or suggestive nature, will not contain images or text of a 

Page 49



Licence produced on 20/08/2013 at 12:15 - SX/SEV/00015/13/02  Page 2 of 4

sexually explicit, obscene or offensive nature and must be approved by the council in 
writing.

24. Leafleting/distribution of flyers will only be permitted in such a way where it does not 
cause public offence. This is regulated by the paid permit system authorising distribution 
of free printed material issued by Leeds City Council. The licensee will remove any 
leaflets from the Highways within a 100 metre radius of the distribution point by 6am in 
addition to the area surrounding the premises. The licensee will have a flyer distribution 
policy to be approved by the Council. 

25. No access will be permitted through the premises to any other adjoining or adjacent 
premises except in the case of an emergency. 

26. No alterations (including temporary alterations) will be made to the structure and 
installations on the premises, without the prior written consent of the council.  This 
condition will not require notice to be given in respect of routine maintenance works.
Where there is any doubt the licensee should seek advice from the council. 

27. The licensee, or a responsible person nominated by him/her in writing for the purpose of 
managing the venue ("the manager") will have personal responsibility for and be present 
on the premises whilst relevant entertainment is being performed.  Any such nomination 
will be produced on demand to an authorised officer of the council or the police. 

28. The licensee will ensure that any person nominated by him/her under the above: 

 a)   has been provided with a copy of the conditions relating to the premises and is fully 
  conversant with them; and 

 b)   is in possession of a written nomination referred to above at all times when they   
are in charge of and present on the premises. 

29. The name of the person responsible for the management of the premises, whether the 
licensee or manager, will be displayed in a conspicuous position within the premises 
throughout the period during which he/she is responsible for the conduct of the premises. 

30. Where the licensee is a body corporate, or an incorporated body, any change of director, 
company secretary or other person responsible for the management of the body will be 
notified in writing to the council within 14 days of such a change.  Such details as the 
council may require in respect of the change in personnel will be furnished within 14 days 
of a request in writing from the council. 

31. Where the licensee, director, company secretary, or responsible person nominated for 
the purpose of managing the venue ('the manager'), is convicted of an offence, they 
must, as soon as practicable after the conviction, inform the council of the conviction 
giving details of the nature and date of the conviction, and any sentence imposed. 

32. The licensee will retain control over all parts of the premises and will not let, licence or 
part with possession of any part of the premises.  The council must be notified 
immediately in the event that any part of the premises is affected by the termination of a 
lease or other event affecting the licensee's control of the premises. 

Page 50



Licence produced on 20/08/2013 at 12:15 - SX/SEV/00015/13/02  Page 3 of 4

33. The licensee will ensure that the public is not admitted to any part or parts of the 
premises that has not been approved by the council. 

34. No persons under the age of 18 will be admitted to the premises. 

35. The licensee will operate a Challenge 25 age verification policy.  People under the age of 
25 will be required to show proof of ID.  A notice to this effect, in accordance with 
condition 18 will be displayed on the premises. 

36. The licence holder will not employ any person under the age of 18 in any capacity. 

37. A suitable CCTV system will be operational on the premises at all times when licensed 
activities are being carried out.  The system will cover all public areas including booths 
and corridors but not including staff changing rooms or toilets.  The system will conform 
to West Yorkshire Police guidelines (as attached to the licence) in respect of business 
related CCTV equipment. It will be adequately maintained and be capable of transporting 
recorded material onto removable media. 

38. The siting of the CCTV system will be agreed with West Yorkshire Police prior to 
installation and will comply with that agreement at all times.  Changes to the siting and 
standard of CCTV systems may only be made with the written consent of West Yorkshire 
Police. 

39. CCTV security footage will be made secure and retained for a minimum period of 31 
days time to the satisfaction of West Yorkshire Police.  CCTV footage will be supplied to 
the police and authorised officers of the Council on request. 

40. At all times that the premises are open to the public there will be a member of staff on 
duty who is conversant with operating the CCTV system and who is able to download 
immediately any footage requested by the police or an officer from the licensing authority 
or authorised agent. 

41. Suitable numbers of Security Industry Authority registered door staff (numbers to be 
subject to police and licensing authority approval) will be present on the premises during 
the performance of relevant entertainment. 

42. Entertainers will be aged no less than 18 years. 

43. All premises that provide relevant entertainment will be expected to provide new 
entertainers with a pack of information. This pack will include a copy of the Sex 
Establishment Licence, including the conditions applied by the Licensing Committee, and 
the following: 

 a) Details of any other conditions applied by management of the premises 
 b) Details of how to report crime to the relevant authority 
 c) Details of insurance (public liability/personal) 
 d) Details of unions, trade organisations or other bodies that represent the interests of

 dancers/entertainers 
 e) A copy of the code of practice for entertainers 
 f) A copy of the code of conduct for customers 
 g) Fining policy 

Page 51



Licence produced on 20/08/2013 at 12:15 - SX/SEV/00015/13/02  Page 4 of 4

 h) Pricing policy 

44. The information provided in the pack will be provided in the dressing rooms. 

45. All booths/areas for VIPs used for private dances must be visible to supervision and must 
not have closing doors or curtains that prevent performances from being observed. 

46. All booths/areas for VIPs used for private dances must be directly supervised by either a 
SIA registered door supervisor, or a member of staff who has direct contact with SIA 
registered door supervisors working on the premises at all times the booths/areas are in 
use.  Direct supervision does not include remote supervision by CCTV. 

47. Entertainers will only be present in the licensed area in a state of nudity when they are 
performing on stage or providing a private dance. 

48. Any person on the premises who can be observed from outside the premises will be 
properly and decently dressed. 

49. The licensee will ensure entertainers have secure dressing rooms, facilities to secure 
valuables and proper sanitation facilities available to them. 

50. The management will maintain a register which details any fines imposed on entertainers 
which will include the date, type of misdemeanor and amount fined. 

51. Vehicles must not be used for personal solicitation, touting or advertising and only 
licensed hackney carriage and private hire vehicles may be used to transport customers 
to and from the premises. 

52. The council may, at the time of grant or renewal of the licence, waive, modify or vary 
these conditions or impose additional conditions as appropriate. 

53. The licensee may apply to the council to vary any of the terms of the licence. 

54. Applications to vary conditions of the licence must be advertised by the licensee in the 
same manner as the application for the issue, renewal or transfer of the licence. 

55. The designated terrace area will only be used as a smoking area for the dancers who will 
be covered up at all times with the knee length robes supplied by the licence holder. No 
unsupervised contact to take place between dancers and customers when on smoking 
breaks.

56. Panic alarms are to be fitted to all booths and VIP performance areas. 

Page 52



Appendix B

Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2, 3)

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence for Black Diamond, 68-72 New Briggate, Leeds, LS1 6UN
	Application form Appendix A
	Premises Location Appendix B
	CIP Evidence Appendix C
	WYP Representation Appendix D
	H&S Representation Appendix E

	7 Application for the Grant of a Sex Establishment Licence for Black Diamond Club, 68-72 New Briggate, Leeds LS1 6UN
	Existing Licence Appendix A
	03 Application Form (Redacted) - Appendix B
	04 Application Form (Sensitive_Not for Public Viewing) - Appendix C


